# MINUTES OF HARRISVILLE CITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

## June 11, 2019 363 West Independence Blvd Harrisville, UT 84404

**Present:** Mayor Michelle Tait, Council Member Grover Wilhelmsen, Council

Member Gary Robinson, Council Member Ruth Pearce, Council Member

Clark Beecher, Council Member Steve Weiss.

**Staff:** Bill Morris, City Administrator, Lynn Fortie, Treasurer, Mark Wilson, Police

Lieutenant, Jennie Knight, City Recorder, Bryan Fife, Recreation Director,

Rick Hill, Bailiff.

**Visitors:** Arnold Tait, Mike McLeighton, DeAnn McLeighton, Blaine Barrow, Austin

Moffit, Russell Wahlen, Heidi Wahlen.

### 7:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL MEETING

#### 1. Call to Order.

Mayor Tait called the meeting to order and welcomed all visitors.

## 2. Opening Ceremony.

Council Member Pearce led the pledge of allegiance and conducted the opening ceremony.

### 3. Consent Items.

**a.** Approve the minutes of May 14, 2019 as presented.

MOTION: Council Member Beecher motioned to approve the minutes of May 14, 2019 as presented. Council Member Pearce seconded the motion. All Council Members voted ave. Motion passed.

### 4. Business Items.

 a. PUBLIC HEARING: Harrisville City Resolution 19-07; a resolution adopting the FY2018-19 amended budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.

MOTION: Council Member Weiss motioned to open a public hearing on Harrisville City Resolution 19-07; a resolution adopting the FY2018-19 amended budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. Council Member Wilhelmsen seconded the motion. All Council Members voted aye. Motion passed.

No public comments were offered.

MOTION: Council Member Beecher motioned to close the public hearing. Council Member Weiss seconded the motion. All Council Members voted aye. Motion passed.

b. Discussion/possible action to adopt Harrisville City Resolution 19-07; a resolution adopting the FY2018-19 amended budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.

Lynn Fortie explained governmental funds are the only funds we really need to spend any time discussing; which include general and capital projects funds. He is recommending small changes with travel and training in the Mayor/Council budget, bank fees in the admin budget, and grant expenditures in the police budget. To keep a balanced budget he increases revenues as well. The main items affecting Capital Projects are the Larsen Lane and 1100 North Street projects. We are being reimbursed for these expenditures but not within this fiscal year.

MOTION: Council Member Wilhelmsen motioned to adopt Harrisville City Resolution 19-07; a resolution adopting the FY2018-19 amended budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. Council Member Weiss seconded the motion. A Roll Call Vote was taken.

Council Member Weiss Yes
Council Member Beecher Yes
Council Member Pearce Yes
Council Member Robinson No
Council Member Wilhelmsen Yes

## Motion passed 4-1.

c. PUBLIC HEARING: Harrisville City Resolution 19-08; a resolution adopting the FY2019-20 final budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.

MOTION: Council Member Weiss motioned to open a public hearing on Harrisville City Resolution 19-08; a resolution adopting the FY2019-20 final budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. Council Member Wilhelmsen seconded the motion. All Council Members voted aye. Motion passed.

No public comments were offered.

MOTION: Council Member Pearce motioned to close the public hearing. Council Member Weiss seconded the motion. All Council Members voted aye. Motion passed.

d. Discussion/possible action to adopt Harrisville City Resolution 19-08; a resolution adopting the FY2019-20 final budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. Lynn Fortie explained the budget changes since the tentative budget was adopted. He mentioned the addition of the Fallen Officer Trust Fund requirement. This is a cost of \$95 per officer per year. He added that under police benefits but did not increase the overall line item since he feels there is enough included to cover this cost.

He also added the certified tax rate for general property tax because now he has the exact number.

Council Member Robinson said he was looking through revenues for the last three years, expenses have gone up; some 10-20% each year. Lynn Fortie responded that our position is worsening, but there was still an increase in revenues on the tentative budget. Council Member Robinson said there was a \$300,000 deficit two years ago, with \$192,000 this year. Lynn Fortie clarified this will decrease by \$8,000 because of the certified tax rate. Council Member Robinson said Matthew Godfrey predicted we would be increasing the fund balance use significantly in the coming years.

Mayor Tait said there are definitely things to consider when addressing the budget so we do not have to impose a property tax increase. Hopefully in the coming year, things will happen to help stabilize our revenues.

Council Member Robinson said senior's citizens in our city have only received an increase one year. He feels there has to be a time frame, as cities grow, we need to be more efficient. He said most businesses, as they grow, have employees take on more responsibilities without taking more money.

Mayor Tait agreed, things need to change, and she is trying to turn things around.

MOTION: Council Member Weiss motioned to adopt Harrisville City Resolution 19-08; a resolution adopting the FY2019-20 final budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. Council Member Beecher seconded the motion. A Roll Call Vote was taken.

Council Member Weiss Yes
Council Member Beecher Yes
Council Member Pearce Yes
Council Member Robinson No
Council Member Wilhelmsen Yes

## Motion passed 4-1.

e. Discussion/possible action to approve Harrisville Ordinance 500; North Street Zoning Map Amendment.

Bill Morris informed Council this area is being considered for rezone on Wall Ave and North Street for 7-Eleven. The property is currently zoned RE-15 (residential). The proposed zoning change is consistent with the General Plan which shows this area as commercial. Once the zoning change is approved, site plan approval will be through Planning Commission.

MOTION: Council Member Pearce motioned to approve Harrisville Ordinance 500; North Street Zoning Map Amendment. Council Member Weiss seconded the motion. A Roll Call Vote was taken.

Council Member Weiss Yes
Council Member Beecher Yes
Council Member Pearce Yes
Council Member Robinson Yes
Council Member Wilhelmsen Yes

## Motion passed 5-0.

f. Discussion/possible action to approve Harrisville City Resolution 19-09; a resolution entering an Interlocal Agreement for Animal Control Services.

Bill Morris explained we currently use Weber County for animal control services. This interlocal agreement will continue that service for five more years. He suggested Council take a look at this agreement in conjunction with the final budget. Mayor Tait pointed out this is paid quarterly. Bill Morris said the rate is based per animal. Council Member Robinson asked where the animals come from. Bill Morris explained whenever they are dropped off or picked up within the city limits. Weber County Animal Shelter is now a no kill shelter, only diseased animals are euthanized. Harrisville is one of the lower rate users. Some small communities out west use the shelter more often because people dump animals out in their city limits.

Council Member Robinson said he feels this is excessive. Bill Morris pointed out they provide animal control and shelter services. Under state law requirements, they have to keep animals a few days and provide vet treatment.

Mayor Tait explained our police department would be overloaded to take over this responsibility. Bill Morris said all of the services are provided for \$41,000 per year. Council Member Robinson asked how many animals come out of Harrisville City. Bill Morris said they explain the amount per city when conducting tours. Council Member Robinson asked why the fees are so high if they are a no kill shelter. Bill Morris said this is the cost of business even when adopting the animals out.

Council Member Robinson asked about the shelter on 750 West. Bill Morris clarified this is just a cattery. Chief Jackson explained Weber County takes more than just dogs and cats.

MOTION: Council Member Beecher motioned to approve Harrisville City Resolution 19-09; a resolution entering an Interlocal Agreement for Animal Control Services. Council Member Wilhelmsen seconded the motion. A Roll Call Vote was taken.

Council Member Weiss Yes
Council Member Beecher Yes
Council Member Pearce Yes
Council Member Robinson No
Council Member Wilhelmsen Yes

### Motion passed 4-1.

# g. Discussion/possible action to approve Harrisville City Resolution 19-10; a resolution amending Personnel Policy relating to Use of City Property.

Police Lieutenant Mark Wilson explained state legislators passed House Bill 163 this session; making personal use of city property a felony. This amendment is putting into place the policy of personal use of city property. The state bill makes it a felony if an employee uses a city owned property for personal use; such as using a pen to sign their check. This policy allows employees the lawful use of city owned property. Chief Jackson said our employees are allowed to take their patrol vehicles homes, to work, and the gym. If they stopped for a drink, the state bill would deem that as unauthorized use. This adopts the same policy we are currently using to cover the employees. This was recommended by the county attorney's office.

Council Member Wilhelmsen said the mosquito abatement is passing a similar policy. Bill Morris said he took the suggested policy and made a few edits to fit.

Council Member Robinson asked if any examples were used during the passing of the law. Lt. Wilson explained this was passed rather under the radar; we did not have the opportunity to argue it. Mayor Tait pointed out this is likely an unintended consequence of passing a law. Bill Morris said adopting policy must go through the appropriate chain of authority.

Council Member Pearce asked how this affects the employee use of the cabin. Bill Morris said yes, this would affect any city owned property, including parks. Employees will still be held accountable for personal use without being charged with a felony. Lt. Wilson said city policy will allow the use of city equipment with the proper checks and balances in place. Bill Morris said most cities are adopting these policy changes until it can be changed with future legislation.

MOTION: Council Member Pearce motioned to approve Harrisville City Resolution 19-10; a resolution amending Personnel Policy relating to Use of City Property. Council Member Weiss seconded the motion. A Roll Call Vote was taken.

Council Member Weiss Yes
Council Member Beecher Yes
Council Member Pearce Yes
Council Member Robinson Yes
Council Member Wilhelmsen Yes

## Motion passed 5-0.

## 5. Public Comments - (3 minute maximum)

No public comments were offered.

### 6. Mayor/Council Follow-Up:

Council Member Weiss asked how long the recycle contract is in place with Waste Management. In the Deseret News, there was an article about how recycling is being dumped into the garbage. Bill Morris said staff can invite Waste Management to give a

presentation of the statistics. Mayor Tait pointed out there are some ideas with recycling to look forward to in the future. Bill Morris reviewed the diversion report from Waste Management. Council Member Robinson asked what common problems they are finding with recycling. Bill Morris said contaminated cardboard is the most common. Pizza boxes or other greasy cardboards are not recyclable.

Council Member Robinson asked what the situation is with Ben Lomond Golf Course. Mayor Tait said there really are no updates with this. There has been so much rain; there really is not a fire hazard yet. Bill Morris said staff has been told they will be mowing next week. He informed Council we are in the process of working with the developer to adopt a new mixed use development ordinance. There is a city planner attending Planning Commission tomorrow to help put together the mixed use ordinance.

Council Member Wilhelmsen said Mosquito Abatement is hiring employees who have experience flying drones. They use computerized maps and isolate areas where employees are able to treat the mosquito populations. They said the fish ponds in back yards are the most likely place to find West Nile Virus. They are also using drones for dry seeding areas. Mayor Tait suggested including a mosquito abatement update in the newsletter.

_	A -1:		
	$\Delta \alpha$	$\mathbf{n}$	ırn
	Adi	v	41   11.

Mayor Tait declared the meeting adjourned at 7:45p.m.

	MICHELLE TAIT	
ATTEST:		
AIIESI.	Mayor	
JENNIE KNIGHT		
City Recorder		
Approved this 25 <sup>th</sup> day of June, 2019		